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Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.
2021 Annual General Meeting Proceeding

One.Commencement of Meeting (announcing the total number of shares represented in the meeting)
Two.Chairperson’s Speech
Three Reports

Four. Acknowledgments

Five.Discussions and Election
Six.5pecial Motion

Seven.Adjournment



Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.
2021 Annual General Meeting Proceeding

Time of meeting: 9:00 am, Tuesday June 22, 2021

Venue: B2, No. 61, Zhongzheng Road, Taoyuan District, Taoyuan City

One.Commencement of Meeting
Two.Chairperson’s Speech

Three.Reports:
1. Report on 2020 business perfarmance.
2, 2020 Audit Committes’s Review Repaort,
3. Report an allocation of employee remuneration and director remuneration.
4. Report an distribution of cash dividends from earnings.

3. Report on amendments to the Company’s "Ethical Behavior Guidelines,”

Four.Acknowledgments:
1. Acknowledgment of 2020 year-end accounts.

2. Acknowledgment of 2020 earnings appropriation.

Five. Discussions and Election;
1. Discussion on amendments to the Company's "Articles of Incarporation.”
2, Discussion on amendments to the Company's "Directors Election Policy.”
3. Re-election of the Company's directars,

4. Discussion en the remaval of restrictions on competing business involvement for new directors and
representatives.

Six.5pecial Motion

Seven.Adjournment



Reports

l. Presentation of report on 2020 business performance.

Details:  For Business Repert, please refer to Attachment 1 [ page 7-9 ).

Il. Presentation of 2020 Audit Committee's Review Report.
Details:  For Audit Committee's Review Report, please refer to Attachment 7 { page 10 ).

IIl. Report on allocation of employee remuneration and directar remuneration.

Details:  Emplayee remuneration of NT$1,000,000 and director remuneration of NT$1,000,000 have been
Recognized for 2020; each of the twao figures represented 0.63% of pre-tax profit before employee and
director fremuneration, and both of which will be entirely paid in cash. The twa figures were indiffarent
from the amounts previously estimated.

V. Report on distribution of cash dividends from earnings.
Details: 1. The Company proposed to distribute cash dividends totaling NT5104,362,500 or NT%0.5 per share fram
2020 available earnings.

2. The board of directors has been authorized under Article 29 of Articles af Incorporation to execute the
above distribution, and made a special resolution during the board meeting hald on March 22, 2021 to
make payment on May 20, 2021.

V. Report on amendments to the Company's "Ethical Behaviar Guidelines.”

Details: 1. Proposal to make partial amendments to the Company's "Ethical Behavior Guidelines"” to accommodate
legal and operational requirements.

2. Please refer to Attachment 6 { page 39-40 ) for comparison of existing and revised clauses,



Acknowledgments

Motion 1 Proposed by the board of directors

Summary; The 2020 year-end accounts are ready for acknowledgment.
Details: 1. The Company's 2020 standalone and consaolidated financial reports have been reviewed and approved by

the Audit Committee and the board of directors, and audited by CPA Huang Hsiu-Chun and CPA Jeff Chen
of Deloitte Taiwan, for which they have issued an independent auditor's report.

2. The business report and abovementioned accounts can be found in Attachment 1 page 7-9 ),
Attachment 3, and Attachment 4 [ pages 11-23 and 24-37 )

Resolution:

Mation 2 Proposed by the board of directors

summary: The 2020 earnings appropriation proposal is ready for acknowledgment,

Details: 1. The Company reported net incame of NT$114,159,076 for 2020, and after making provision of
NT$4,034,910 for statutory reserves, adding back NT$130,254,470 of unappropriated earnings
accumulated in previous years, deducting NT$72,840,078 of cumulative gains/losses on disposal of equity
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income that have been reclassified directly to
earnings, adding NT%30,101 actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit plan, and adding back reversal of
special reserves totaling NT539,225,062 in accordance with Article 41 of the Securities and Exchange Act,
the Company had NT5205,793,721 of earnings that were available for distribution, A resolution has been
made by the board of directors to distribute cash dividends of NTS104,362,500, which leaves
unappropriated earnings with a closing balance of NT5101,431,221.

2. The 2020 Earnings Appropriation Chart can be found in Attachment 5 [ page 38 ).

Resolution:



Discussions and Election

Mation 1 Propased by the board of directors
summary: Amendments to the Company's "Articles of Incorporation” is ready for discussian.

Details: 1. Proposal to make partial amendments to the Company's "Articles of Incorparation” to accommodate
legal and operatianal reguirements,

2. Please refer to Attachment 7 { page 41-44 ) for comparison of existing and revised clauses.

Resolutian:

Motion 2 Proposed by the board of directors

Summary: Amendments to the Company's "Directars Election Paolicy” is ready for discussion.

Details:  1.Praposal to make partial amendments to the Company's "Directors Election Palicy" far practical and legal
requirements.

2. Plzase refer to Attachment 8 { page 45-47 ) for comparison of existing and revised clauses,

Resalution:

hMation 3 Proposed by the board of directors
summary: Re-election of the Company's directors; the motion is ready to proceed.
Details: 1. Service of the current board of directors is due to expire on June &, 2021,

2. According to Article 18 of Articles of Incorporation, a total of 10 directors including 3 independent
directors are due to be elected during the current shareholder meeting to serve a term of threg years
from June 22, 2021 to June 21, 2024,

3. This election of Company directars shall proceed using the candidate nomination system, in which
sharehalders will elect from the list of nominated candidates. Candidates’ academic accomplishments,
career backgrounds, and related information are detailed in Attachment 9 [ page 48-49 ),

Election result

Mation 4 Proposed by the board of directors

Summary: Rernoval of restrictions an competing business involvement for new directors and representatives. The
mation is open for discussion.

Details: 1. Pursuant to Paragraph 1, Article 209 of The Company Act, "Directars may abtain permission for engaging
in business activities that coincide with those of the company, either for directors’ awn benefits ar for
the benefits of athers, by disclosing material details and seeking approval during a shareholder
meeting. ”

2. Please refer to Attachment 10 { page 50 ) for List of Parties Subject to Remaoval of Competing Business
Invalvement Restrictions.
Resolution:



Special Motions

Adjournment



Attachment 1

|. Fareword

Outbreak of COVID-19 has had adverse impact on economic activities in 2020, Economic growth rate for 2020
was concluded at 3.11%, down from the 3.31% in 2019, Tacyuan Branch suspended operation in February 2017
to undergo renovation as part of its transformation effort, and later re-opened in September 2018. Taipei
Branch has been able to maintain revenues at a consistant level, but had its rent rate increased according to

Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.
2020 Business Report

original lease terms when the lease agreement was due for re-negotiation.

The government's tightened controls over real estate (such as Combined Hausing and Land Tax, credit tightening
an luxury homes, adjustment to housing tax rate...| combined with falling population growth and increased rate
of home awnership have deterred praperty buyers from chasing the market, and property prices have reached a
standstill given the low transaction volume. The Company will take more pro-active efforts at selling its
Yangmingshan praject, The liaoxi project, on the other hand, was already completed in the 3rd quarter of 2017

and has commenced sale since the 4th guarter, and only 23 units remained unsold at the end of 2020

Il. Business Report

Below is an analysis of operating results, budget execution, financial ratios, and profitability for 2020:

{1} Business performance

Unit: NTD theusands

Item 2020 consolidated 2019 consolidated Growth rate (%)
Opemting revenues 354,440 630,176 (14.72)
Operating cosls [90.011 323,050 (41.35)
Gross profil 364479 326,226 117
Opemling cxpenses 02,611 218,954 (7.46)
Operating profil 161,518 107,272 50.83
Profit before lax 156,243 133,366 17.15
Income taxcxpense 42 184 21.581 95,00
Current net income 114,159 111,785 2.12
Dther comprehensive incoms {2,340 11,178 (120.93)
ﬁ?ﬁﬁ::ﬁme income tor the 111819 | 122,963 (9.06)

1. Operating revenues in 2020 were approximately NT$95,736,000 less than 2019, a year-by-year
comparison is provided below s v avzands)

Commiszion income

Eental income

Construclion income

Other operating
revenues

2. Overall, revenues in 2020 were NT$95,736,000 lower compared to 2019. Meanwhile, costs reduced by

2020 2019 Variation
201,207 162,994 38213
247,744 242,256 5,488

5,669 190,796 (131,127)
45,820 54,130 (8310)
T ssaad 650,176 (95.736)

NT5133,939,000, increasing gross profit by approximately MNTS38,203,000.




With respect to operating expenses, the Company adopted a series of cost-saving measures and received
COVID-12 utility subsidies from the government that ultimately reduced operating expenses by
MT516,343,000

MNet non-operating expenses increased by NTS31,669,000 mainly as a result of increased reversal of
impairments: NT51,000,000, increased loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment: NTS3,960,000
increased unrealized net gain on exchange: NT%2,789,000, decreased gain on disposal of financial assets
NT9,765,000, and increased net loss on valuation of financial assets: MNT521,402,000.

]

Other comprehensive income reduced by NTS13,518,000 mainly as a result of unrealized loss on valuatian of
equity instruments at fair value through ather comprehensive income, and adjustments to deferred income
taxes recognized in previous years,

Overall, the Company reported comprehensive income at MNT5111,819,000 for 2020, down NTS1 1,144,000
from the NTS122 963,000 reported in 2019,

(11} Budget execution;

Operating revenues decreased in 2020 due to the effect of COVID-19. Although economic growth far 2021 has
been estimated at 4.4% (as of 2021.02,20, compared to 3.31% for 2020), much of the growth is attributed ta
export sales, and confidence of domestic consumers remains somewhat weak, Furthermare, sale of real
estate properties is undermined by the new palicy restrictions the government has putin place. Despite the
decline in revenue, the Company managed to exercise proper control of costs and expenses and keep current
net income at a level comparable to 2019,

DeHome Development had completed its project - Yu Yangming lecated in Yangmingshan, Taipei City, in 2014,
and more than 30% of the units have been sold by the end of 2020. The Jiaoxi project, on the other hand, was
completed in the 3rd quarter of 2017, and a total of 19 units have been sold by the end of 2020. The Company
will continue selling the above prajects in 2021,

(1) Analysis of financial ratios and profitability:

ltem 2020 2019 d;:;;; a: E“/ i

Debt to assets ratio 72, 25% 62, 20%, {0.04)
Long-term capital to property, plants and equipment 206.39%, 198.07%, 4.20
Current ratio 10068, Q1. 78% 971
Ouick ralio 41.39%, 313.59%; 23.22
Fetum on assets 2.27% 2194 3.65
Return on equity 4,820 4.83% (020) T
Met profic margin 200,35 17.19% 19,78

FPs 63 0.64 .56

(IV) Research and development:

Retail and property leasing are two of Tonlin's primary business activities. In terms of retail, the Company is
less competitive compared to department store chains in sourcing commercial tenants, which is reflected in
its declining revenues. The Taoyuan Branch has already transitioned into a lifestyle mall offering cinema,
mediurm and large dining brands, recreational space, designer clothing, eslite bookstore, and a pleasant
shopping environment. With respect to leasing, the Company pays constant attention to cha nges in markel
rate, and either makes appropriate adjustments upon contract expiry or looks for suitable retail locations to
accommadate high rent-paying tenants. Meanwhile, the construction segment operates by monitoring and
making timely adjustments in response to regulatory and market changes.



1. Gperational focus and prospect for 2021

After taking into account the ongoing China-USA trade war, trade protectionism, the COVID-19 pandermic, and
availability of vaccines, the global economy should expand at a higher rate in 2021 compared to 2020, As a
trade-oriented economy, Taiwan will undoubtedly benefit from the abave changes. The Directorate General
of Budget, Accounting, and Statistics has estimated Talwan's 2071 economic growth rate at 4.4% as of
February 20, 2021, up slightly from 2020, However, the implementation of mandatory rest days and public
holidays has the potential to increase labor cast, whereas curtailment of civil servants' pension is likely to

deter consumer spending.
Below is a summary of the Company's business plans and key production/sales policies:
(1) Department store and retail (Taoyuan Branch)

Taoyuan Branch underwent a major renovation in February 2107 to transform into a lifestyle mall offering
cinema, medium and large dining brands, recreational space, designer clothing, and eslite hookstore. It re-
opened in September 2018 and will make adjustments to product partfolio depending on future
performance.

{Il} Real estate leasing {Taipei Branch)

The Company will strive to increase rental incame by adjusting rent rates or tenants as lease Agreements expire.

(1) Business investments

1. DeHome Cevelopment Co., Ltd, will continue selling its Yangminshan project and the residential praject
located in Jiaoxi, Yilan, throughout 2021,

1. Other subsidiaries of the Company, including the venture capital business, have not made any major
investment in recent years, and will direct attention towards managing existing investments and seeking
cpportunitias te recover capital in the form of capital reduction or dividend payment,

(I} Closing remarks

The Company and its management team will prepare for the challenges ahead and cantinue making
improvements to service quality, marketing perfarmance, and management efficiency in ways that maximize
sharehelder returns. We would like to thank our shareholders for their continuous suppart and
encauragement ta the Company.

We wish all our shareholders a prosperous future ahead

Ers

President: Wang Hua-li  Vice President: Che

.



Attachment 2

Audit Committee's Review Report

We have reviewed the Company's 2020 business report, financial statements,
and earnings appropriation proposal prepared by the board of directors. The
financial statements have been audited by CPA Huang Hsiu-Chun and CPA Jeff Chen
of Deloitte Taiwan, to which the firm issued an independent auditor's report.

The Audit Committee found no misstatement in the above business report,
financial statements, or earnings appropriation proposal, and hereby issues its
report as presented above in accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and
Exchange Act and Article 219 of The Company Act.

This report is hereby presented

for
The 2021 annual general meeting of Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.

Audit Committee

Convener: Chan Shen-Hua %

&

March 22, 2021

10 -



Attachment 3
Independent Auditor's Report

To stakeholders of Tonlin Department Stare Co., Ltd,

Audit opinions

We have audited the accompanying standalone balance sheet of Tonlin Department Stare Co., Ltd.as at
December 31, 2020 and 2013, and the standalone statement of comprehensive income, standalone statement of
changes in sharehalders' equity, standalone cash flow statement, and notes to standalane financial statements
{including summary of significant accounting policies) for the periads from lanuary 1 to December 31, 2020 and

2019,

In our epinion, all material disclosures of the standalone financial statements mentioned above were
prepared in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities |ssuers, and
presented a fair view of the standalone financial position of Tanlin Department Store Co., Ltd. as at December 31,
2020 and 2019,and standalone business performance and cash flow for the periods January 1 to December 31,

2020 and 2019,
Basis of audit opinion

We conducted aur audits in accordance with Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
statements by Certified Public Accountants and the generally accepted auditing principles. Our responsibilities as
an auditor for the standalone financial statements under the abovementioned standards are explained in the
Responsibilities paragraph. All relevant personnel of the accounting firm have followed CPA code of ethics and
maintained independence from Tonlin Department Stare Co., Ltd. when performing their duties. We balieve that

the evidence obtained provide an adeguate and appropriate basis for our opinion.
Key audit issues

Key audit issues are matters that we considered to be the most important, based on professional judgment,
when auditing the 2020 standalane financial statements of Tonlin Department Stare Co., Ltd, These issues have
already been addressed when we audited and formed our opinions on the standalone financial statements.

Therefore we do not provide opinions separately for individual issues.

11



Key audil issues concerning the 2020 standalone financial statements of Tonlin Cepartment Store Co,, Ltd. are as

follows;

Impairment assessment of investment properlies

As at December 31, 2020, Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd. had investment properties located at Xinzhuang
Ristrict that were valued at NT51,059,951,000, representing 18% of total assets and constituted a significant part
of standalone financial statements, The management follows 1A5 36 - “Impairment of Assets” and assesses
investment properties for signs of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Assets that exhibit any sign of
impairment will have recoverable amount estimated in order to determine the amount of impairment. However,
considering that real estate prices are affected by several factors including government policy, economic eyele, and
market supply/demand, and that impairment assessment requires subjective judgments, major estimates, and
assumptions from the management, we have identified impairment assessment of investment properties as a ke
audit issue. Accounting policy on impairment assessment of investment properties, uncertainties associated with
accounting estimates and assumptions, and related disclosures can be found in Notes 4, 5, and 14 of standalone

financial statements,
The following audit procedures were taken in relation to the key audit issues identified above:

1. Understanding and testing the design of key internal eontrol system that is relevant to impairment

assessment of investment properties.

2. Obtaining the independent valuatian report used by the management, and evaluating the professional

capacity, competence, and ohjectivity of independent valuers.

3. Determining the rationality of the valuation method, parameters, and assumptions used in the valuation of

investment property and comparing transaction prices of properties in the vicinity,

4. Consulting our own experts about the independent valuer's choice of valuation method as well as inputs
and historical market data used in the calculation, and making appropriate comparisons to determine the

rationality of the assessed price.
5. Taking count and verifying records of investment properties, and checking title deeds for the lands owned,

Correctness of retail commission income

Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd. reported retail commission incarme of NT5109,471,000 in 2020,
representing 21% of operating revenues and was cansiderad significant to the presentation of standalone financial
statements. The department store aperates by having merchants set up individual retail departments, and the
Company earns a certain percentage or amount from each transaction made by merchants. Under this
arrangement, the Company first collects payment from customers then deducts merchant's share of the procesds
and recognizes the remainder as sales revenue. Due to the vast number of merchants and the different
commission rates involved, calculation of retail commission income depends heavily on the use of computer
system, which we consider to be a key audit issue. Disclosures relating to retail commission income can be found

in Mote 20 of standalone financial statements,
The fallowing audit procedures were taken in relatian to the key audit issues identified above:

1. Understanding and randomly testing the effectiveness of internal contral design and execution for retail

commission incame.

12



2. Making sample checks an current year's Merchant Settlement Master Report to determine whether the
cemmission rates configured on the computer system are consistent with contract terms; and making

separate calculations using the commission rate to verify the correctness of retail commission income,
Responsibilities of the management and governing body to the standalone financial statements

Responsibilities of the management were to prepare and ensure fair presentation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reparts by Securities lssuers”
and to exercise proper internal control practices that are relevant to the preparation of standalone financial
statements so that the standalone financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether caused by

fraud or error.

The managemeant's respansibilities when preparing standalone financial statements also involved: assessing
the ability of Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd. to operate, disclose information, and account for transactions as a
Boing concern unless the management intends to liquidate Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd ar cease business

aperations, or is compelled to do so with no alternative solution,

The governing body of Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd, (including the Audit Committee) is respansible far

supervising the financial reporting process,
Responsibilities of the auditor when auditing standalone financial statements

The purpeses of our audit were to obtain reasanable assurance of whether the standalone financial
statements were prone to material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a repart of our
audit opinions. We cansidered assurance to be reasonable only if it is highly credible, However, audit tasks
canducted in accardance with generally accepted auditing principles do nat necessarily guarantee detection of all
material misstatements within the standalone financial statements. M isstatements can arise fram fraud or error,
Misstatements are considered material if the individual amaount ar aggregate total is reasonably expected to affect

ecanomic decisions of the standalone financial statement user,

When conducting audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing principles, we exercised judgments

and raised doubts as deemed professionally appropriate. We also performed the following tasks as an auditor:

1. Identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement within the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error; designing and executing appropriate response measures for the identified
risks; and obtaining adequate and appropriate audit evidence to support audit opinions. Fraud may involve
conspiracy, forgery, intentional omission, untruthful declaration, or breach of internal contral, and our audit

did not find any material misstatement where the risk of fraud is greater than the risk of error,

2. Developing the required level of understanding on relevant internal contrals and designing audit
procedures that are appropriate under the prevailing circumstances, but without providing apinion on the

effectiveness of internal contral system of Tonlin Department Store Ca., Ltd.

3. Assessing the appropriateness of accounting policies adopted by the management, and the rationality of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made.

4. Forming conclusions regarding the apprapriateness of management's decision to account for the business
as a going concern, and whether there are doubts or uncertainties abaut the ability of Tonlin Department
Store Co., Ltd. to operate as a going concern, based on the audit evidence ahtained. We are bound to
remind users of standalone financial statements and make related disclosures i uncertainties exist in
regards to the abovemenetioned events or circummstances, and amend audit opinions when the disclosures

are no lenger appropriate, Qur conclusions are based an the audit evidence ohtained up to the date of
13



audit report. However, future events ar change of circumstances may still render Tonlin Department Stare

Co., Ltd. no longer capable of operating as a gaing concern.

LA

Assessing the overall presentation, structure, and contents of the standalone financial statements (including
related footnotes), and whether certain transactions and events are presented appropriately in the

standalone financial statements.

6. Obtaining sufficient and appropriate audit evidence on financial information of equity-accounted
investments held by Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd., and expressing opinions on standalone financial
statements. Our responsibilities as auditor are to instruct, supervise, and execute audits and form audit

opinions on Tonlin Department Store Ca., Ltd,

We have communicated with the gaverning body about the scope, timing, and sighificant findings {including

significant defects identified in the internal contral) of our audit.

We have also provided the governing body with a declaration of independence stating that all relevant
personnel of the accounting firm have camplied with auditors® professional ethics, and communicated with the

gaverning body on all matters that may affect the auditar's independence (including protection measures).

We have identified the key audit matters after communicating with the governing body regarding the 2020
standalone financial staterments of Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd. These issues have been addressed in our
audit report except for: 1. Certain topics that are prohibited by law from disclosing to the public; or 2. Under
extreme circumstances, topics that we decided not to communicate in the audit report because of higher negative

impacts they may cause than the benefits they bring to public interast,

Deloitte Taiwan

CPA Huang Hsiu-Chun CRA leff Chen
Approval reference of the Securities and Futures Approval reference of the Financial Supervisory
Bureau Commission

Tai-Tsai-Cheng-(V1)-0920123784 lin-Guan-Zhgeng-Shen-099003 1652

March 22, 2021

Far the canvenience of readers and for infarmation purposes only, the auditors’ repart and the accompanying
financial statements have been translated inta English from the ariginal Chinese version prepared and used in the
Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between the English and the Chinese version ar any differences
in interpretation between the two versians, the ariginal Chinese version shall prevail.

The auditors’ report and the accompanying financial statements have been translatad into English from tha
ariginal Chinese version, and the English versian is nat audited by certified public accountant,

14
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Code

4000

5000

5900

E000

6500

7100

7010

7020

7050
7060

F000

7900

7950

8200

_ a1 65 SR
For periods from January 1 to December 31, 2020 and 2019

Operating revenues (Notes 4 and
20)

Operating costs (Note 21}

Gross profit

Operating expenses {(Notes 4, 18,
21 and 28)

Dperating profit

Mon-ocperating income and expense

Interest income (Motes 4 and
21)

Cther incame (Motes 4 and
21}

Other gains and losses (Nates
4,7, 14 and 21)

Financial costs (Note 21)

Share of gain/loss fram
subsidiaries and
associated companies
accaunted using the equity
method (Motes 4 and 12)

Tatal non-operating
income and
EXPENSEs

Profit before tax

Income tax expenses (Motes 4 and
22)

Current net income

Other comprehensive income

1) i.‘:h_]. = .
! il ensive Income

(=] s

Unit: NTD thousands, except EPS which is in dollars

2020 2019
Amount ! Amount %

5 519,690 100 5 464,291 100
161 874 31 108,114 24
357,816 69 356,177 76
180,589 35 191,479 41
177,227 34 164,698 a5

399 1,263 -
16,504 3 17.600 4
9,283 2 42,820 4
29,734 ) i G| 29,098 ) \ 6)
18,155 ) | 3) 54,910 ) | 14 )
21,703 ) ! 4) 32,325 ) [ 71
155,524 30 132,373 28
41,365 8 20,588 4
114,159 22 111,785 24

17



8310

8311

8316

8349

2300

8500

8710
9810

Iterns not reclassified into
profit and loss:

Remeasurement of
defined benefit plan

(Motes 4 and 18) 5 38 - ] 1,334 ) -
Unrealized gain on
valuation of equity
instruments at
FWTOCI (Notes 4, 8
and 19} 7.996 2 898 -
Income tax on items
not reclassified inta
profit and loss
(Motes 4 and 22} | 10,374 ) 2) 11,614 2
Other comprehensive
income - current i 2,340 ) - 11,178 2
Total comprehensive income -
current 5 111,819 22 5 122 963 26
Earnings per share (MNote 23)
Basic 5 0.65 5 0.64
Diluted 5 .65 5 .64

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
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4 mTAFChafiges in Equity

Standalone

For periods from January 1 to December 31, 2020 and 2019

Unit: NTD thousand

Other equity item (Notes

4, Band 19)
Comman share capital  Addilicnal paid-in capital Retained earnings (Notes 4, 18 and 19) Unrealized gains/losses
— an financial assats at Treasury: stock
Code (Mates 4 and 19) Statutory reserves Special reserves Unappropriated earnings Total FYTOC Tatal Equity

Al Balance at January 1, 2019 5 450,265 4 441,850 5 233,383 P4 168,245 | S 2,250,600

Aporepriation and distribution of 2018 earnings
B Fravision for statutany resomes 5,010 - { 4010 ) 5
B3 Provision for special reservas 230,373 { 230,373 ) -

Total appraopriation and distribution of 2013 earnings 9,010 230,373 { 239,383 ) i ——
01 2019 net income - 111,785 111,785
o3 2015 other comprehensive income - after tax e { 1,067 ) 12,245 11,178
D5 2019 total comprehensive income = 110,718 12,345 122,963
i1 Balance as at December 31, 2019 453,275 672,223 110,718 156,000 | 2,373,563

Appropriation and distribution of 2019 earnings
Bl Provision far statutery reserves 11,072 [ 11,072 } -
B3 Reversal of special reserves i 176,716 ) 176,716 3
B3 Cash dividends on common shares - [ 146,108 | { 146,108 ) - 145108 )

Total appropriation and distribution of 2019 earnings 114972 [ 176,716 } 19,536 - 145,108 )
M1 Adjustment to additional paid-in capital far dividends paid to

subsidiaries 23,326 = z e H -} 3316

01 2020 net income - 5 114,155 - 114,15%
o3 2020 other comprehensive Incame - after tax - == - 30 2370 340
b3 2020 tatal comprehensive income = 114,188 2370 _ 11189
al Misposal of equity instrumeants at FVTOC B ' 73,841 ) 74,274 433
1 Balance as at December 31, 2020 4 2.087 250 5 470,347 5 495 507 5 170,602 5 1,136,456 (5 #4005 (& 1283531} 5 2363033

19
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Code

AROOLD
AZ20010
A20100
A20200
A20400

A20500
AZ1200
A21300
A22400

A22500

A22700

A22600

A23700

A30000
A31115

A31130
A31150
A31240
A31180
A31200
A31230
A32130
A3Z2150
A32220
A32120
A32230
A32240

For periods fram January 1 to December 31, 2020 and 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Pre-tax profit for the current period

Adjustments far:

depreciatian expense
Amortization

Met loss [gain) on financial assets at
FVTPL

Financial costs
Interest income
Dividend income

Share of loss from subsidiaries and
associated companies accounted
using the equity method

Loss [gain] on dispasal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of investment
properties

Expenses reclassified from property,
plant, and equipment

Reversal of impairment on nan-
financial assets

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Financial assets mandatory to be
carried at FWTPL

MNote receivable
Trade receivable
Lease receivable
Other receivables

Inventories

Prepayments and other currant assets

Mote pavable

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Other payables

Other current liabilities

Met defined benefit liabilities

e

2020

& 155,524

80,179
595

11,514

29,734
399 )
3,242 )

18,155

3,948

372

15,000 )

102,002 )
385 )
212

2,191}
1,583 )
31,832
9,842
3,305 )
29,370
3,109 )
6,476 )
3,843 )

5,347 )

Lnit: NTD thousand

2018

S 132,373

83,604
525

{ 11,886 )
29,008

( 1,263 )

I 4,403 )

64,910

{ 12)

350

{ 14,000 |

51,679
285
12,378
3,286
2,407
14,084
11,305
{ 48,821 )
| 34,351 )
3,866
7,700
4,294
1472 )

| SRS



A33000 Cash inflow from operating activities

A33100 Interest received

A33300 Interest paid

A33200 Dividends received

A33500 Income tax paid

AASA MNet cash inflow from aperating
activities

Cash flows fram investing activitios

BOOOLD Proceeds from liquidation or capital
reduction of financial assets at FVTOC

BOQ040 Dispasal {acquisition) of financial assets
carried at cost after amortization

BOZ700 Acquisition of property, plant, and
equipment

BO7100 Increase (decrease) in equipment purchase
payable

BOZ2B00 Proceeds from dispasal of property, plant
and equipment

BO3700 Decrease in refundable depaosits

BO5400 Acquisition of investment property

BOSS00 Proceeds from disposal of investment
property

BOYe00 Dividends received from subsidiaries and

assaciated companies

BBEB Met cash inflow {outflow) from
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Q0200 Decrease in short-term borrowings

CO1600 Proceeds from long-term borrowings

CO1700 Repayments of long-term borrowings

CO3000 Decrease in guarantee deposits received

C04500 Payment of cash dividends

CCCe Met cash outflow from financing

activities

EEEE Met increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

EQQ100 Cpening balance of cash and cash equivalents

EQDZ00 Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

T

224,395
494

{ 30,003 )
3,242

{___ 49,087 )

142,041

3,273
24,972
{ 29,139 )

17,537

12

38

4,781

21,474

— RN ST L

{170,000
2,804,000

[ 2,694,000 )

[ 2,107 )

(146,108 )

{208,215}

i 37,700 )

92,214

$ 54514

306,536
1,248

| 28,883 )
4,403

I 5,013 )

4,207

[ 12,403 )

{ 38,599 )

{157,231}

137
198
( 535 )

3096

(__ 201,130)

T - T

[ 100,000 )
2,574,000

{ 2,539,000)

| 5,211

| 70,211 )




The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
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Attachment 4

Declaration Concerning Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises

Affiliated enterprises subject to the preparation of consolidated financial statements of affiliated enterprises
under "Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consalidated Business Reports and Consolidated
Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises” were identical to the affiliated companies subject to the preparation
of consolidated financial staterments under International Financial Reporting Standards Mo, 10 {IFRS 10) for
financial year 2020 {from January 1 to December 31, 2020). All mandatory disclosures of the consalidated financial
statements of affiliated enterprises have been disclased in the consolidated financial statements, therefare no

separate censolidated financial statement of affiliated enterprises was prepared.

This declaration is solemnly made by

March 22, 2021

24



Independent Auditor's Repart

To stakehalders of Tonlin Department Store Ca., Ltd.

Audit opinions

We have audited the accompanying consalidated balance sheet of Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd. and
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as Tonlin Group) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in shareholders' equity, consolidated
cash flaw statement, and notes to consolidated financial statements (including summary of significant accounting
paolicies) for the periods from January 1 to December 31, 2020 and 2019,

In our opinion, all material disclosures of the consolidated financial statements mentioned above were
prepared in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and
the version of International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and interpretations
there of approved by the Financial Supervisory Commission, and presented a fair view of the consolidated financial
pasition of Tanlin Group as at Decemnber 31, 2020 and 2019, and consalidated business performance and cash flow
far the periods January 1 to December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the generally accepted auditing principles, Our responsibilities as
an auditor for the consolidated financial statements under the abovementioned standards are explained in the
Respensibilities paragraph. &ll relevant personnel of the accounting firm have followed CPA code of ethics and
maintained independence from Tanlin Group when performing their duties. We believe that the evidence
obtained provide an adequate and appropriate basis for aur apinion.

Key audit issues

Key audit issues are matters that we considered to be the most important, based on professional judgment,
when auditing the 2020 censolidated financial statements of Tonlin Group. These issues have already been
addressed when we audited and farmed our opinions an the consolidated financial statements. Therefore we do
not provide opinions separately for individual issues.

25



Key audit issues concerning the 2020 consalidated financial statements of Tonlin Group are as follows:

Impairment assessment of investment properties

As al Decernber 31, 2020, Tonlin Group had investment properties located at Xinzhuang District that were
valued at NT51,059,951,000, representing 17% of total consolidated assets and constituted a significant part of
consolidated financial statements. The management follows 145 36 - “Impairment of Assets” and assesses
investment properties for signs of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Assets that exhibit any sign of
impairment will have recoverable amount estimated in order to determine the amount of impairment. However,
considering that real estate prices are affected by several factors including government policy, economic cycle, and
market supply/demand, and that impairment assessment requires subjective judgments, major estimates, and
assumptions from the management, we have identified impairment assessment of investment properties as a key
audit issue. Accounting policy on impairment assessment of investment properties, uncertainties associated with
accounting estimates and assumptions, and related disclosures can be found in Notes 4, 5, and 15 of consalidated
financial statements,

The following audit procedures were taken in relation te the key audit issues identified above;

1. Understanding and testing the design of key internal control system that is relevant to impairment
assessment of investment properties.

2. Obtaining the independent valuation report used by the management, and evaluating the professional
capacity, competence, and objectivity of independent valuers,

3. Determining the rationality of the valuation method, parameters, and assumptions used in the valuation of
investment property and camparing transaction prices of properties in the vicinity,

4. Consulting our own experts about the independent valuer's choice of valuation method as well as inputs and
histarical market data used in the calculation, and making appropriate comparisons to determine the
rationality of the assessed price.

5. Taking count and verifying records of investment properties, and checking title deeds for the lands owned.

Correctness of retail commission income

Tonlin Group reparted retail commission income of NT$109,471,000 in 2020, representing 20% of operating
revenues and was considered significant to the presentation of consolidated financial statements. The department
store operates by having merchants set up individual retail departments, and Tonlin Group earns 3 certain
percentage or amount from each transaction made by merchants. Under this arrangement, the Company first
collects payment from custamers then deducts merchant's share of the proceeds and recognizes the remainder as
sales revenue, Due ta the vast number of merchants and the different commissian rates involved, calculation of
retail commission income depends heavily on the use of computer system, which we consider ta be a key audit
issue. Disclosures relating to retail commission income and accounting policy can be found in Notes 4 and 21 of
consolidated financial statements.

The following audit procedures were taken in relation to the key audit issues identified above:

1. Understanding and randomly testing the effectiveness of internal contral design and execution for retail
COMmMmIission income.

2. Making sample checks on current year's Merchant Settlement Master Report to determine whether the
commission rates configured on the computer system are consistent with contract terms; and making
separate calculations using the commission rate to verify the correctness of retail commission income,

Other Matters

Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd. has prepared standalone financial statements for 2020 and 2019, which we
have audited and issued independent auditor's reports with ungqualified opinions.

Responsibilities of the management and governing body to the consolidated financial statements

Responsibilities of the management were to prepare and ensure fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities lssuers”
and the version of International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and
interpretations thereof approved and published by the Financial Supervisory Commission, and to exercise proper
internal cantrol practices that are relevant to the preparation of consolidated financial statements so that the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or errar.

The management's respensibilities when preparing consclidated financial statements also involved: assessing
the ability of Tonlin Group to operate, disclose information, and account for transactions as a going concern unless
the management intends to liguidate Tonlin Group or cease business operations, or is compelled to do so with no
alternative solution.
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The governing body of Tonlin Group {including the Audit Committee) is respansible for supervising the
financial reporting process.

Responsibilities of the auditor when auditing consolidated financial statements

The purposes of our audit were to obtain reasonable assurance of whether the consolidated financial
statements were prone to material misstatements, whether due to fravd or error, and to issue a report of our
audit opinions. We considered assurance to be reasonable anly if it is highly credible. However, audit tasks
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing principles do not necessarily guarantee detection of all
material misstatements within the consolidated financial statements. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error,
Misstatements are considered material if the individual amount or aggregate total is reasanably expected to affect
economic decisions of the consaolidated financial statement user.

When canducting audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing principles, we exercised judgments
and raised doubts as deemed professionally appropriate. We also performed the following tasks as an auditor;

1. Identifying and assessing risks of material misstaternent within the consalidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error; designing and executing appropriate respanse measures for the identified
risks; and obtaining adequate and appropriate audit evidence to suppart audit opinions. Fraud may involve
conspiracy, forgery, intentional omissiaon, untruthful declaration, or breach of internal contrel, and our audit
did not find any material misstatement where the risk of fraud is greater than the risk of error.

2. Developing the required level of understanding an relevant internal controls and designing audit procedures
that are appropriate under the prevailing circumstances, but without providing opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control system of Tonlin Group,

3. Assessing the appropriateness of accounting policies adopted by the management, and the rationality of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made,

4. Forming conclusions regarding the appropriateness of management’s decision to account for the business as
a going concern, and whether there are doubts or uncertainties about the ahility of Tonlin Group to operate
as a going concern, based an the audit evidence obtained. We are bound to remind users of consolidated
financial statements and make related disclosures if uncertainties exist in regards to the abovemenetioned
events or circumstances, and amend audit opinions when the disclosures are no longer appropriate. Our
canclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of audit report. However, future events
ar change of circumstances may still render Tonlin Group no longer capable of aperating as a going concern.

5. Assessing the overall presentation, structure, and contents of the consolidated financial statements (including
related footnotes), and whether certain transactions and events are presented appropriately in the
consalidated financial statements,

. Obtaining sufficient and appropriate audit evidence an financial information of equity-accounted investments
held by the group, and expressing opinions on consalidated financial statements. Gur respansibilities as
auditor are to instruct, supervise, and execute audits and form audit opinians on the group.

We have communicated with the governing body about the scape, timing, and significant findings (including
significant defects identified in the internal contral} of our audit.

We have also provided the gaverning body with a declaration of independence stating that all relevant
personnel of the accounting firm have complied with auditors' professional ethics, and communicated with the
governing body on all matters that may affect the auditor’s independence {including protection measures).
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We have identified the key audit issues afler communicating with the governing body regarding the 2020
consolidated financial statements of Tonlin Group. These issues have been addressed in our audit report except
for: 1. Certain topics that are prohibited by law from disclosing to the public; or 2. Under extreme circumstances,
topics that we decided not to communicate in the audit report because of higher negative impacts they may cause
than the benefits they bring to public interest,

Deloitte & Touche

CPA Huang Hsiu-Chun CPA Jeff Chen

Appraval reference of the Securities and Futures The Financial Supervisory Commission R.O.C.

Bureau Approved No.
Tai-Tsai-Cheng-(V1)-0220123784 lin-Guan-Zhgeng-5hen-0930031652

March 22, 2021

MNotice to Readers
For the convenience of readers and for information purposes only, the auditors’ report and the accompanying
financial statements have been translated inte English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the
Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between the English and the Chinese version or any differences
in interpretation between the two versions, the original Chinese version shall prevail.

The auditors’ report and the accompanying financial statemants have been translated into English from the
original Chinese version, and the English version is not audited by certified public accountant,
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Far periods fram Januar",r 1 ta December 31, 2020 and 2019

LInit: NTD thousands, except EPS which is in dallars

2020 2019
Code Amount o Amount %
4000 Operating revenues [Notes 4 and ' B
21} 5 554,440 100 5 650,176 100
5000 Operating costs (Motes 4, 11 and
22) 190,011 34 323,950 ]
5800 Gross profit 364,429 GG 326,226 50
GO00 Operating expenses (Notes 4, 1%, 22
and 27} 202,611 EY) 218,954 __ 34
6500 Operating profit 161,818 29 107,272 16
Mon-cperating income and expense
7100 Interest income [Motes 4 and
22) 580 # 1,475 T
7010 Other income [Notes 4 and
22} 17,453 3 18,253 3
7020 Other gains and losses (Motes
4,7, 14, 15 and 22) 7,326 1 39,644 5]
7050 Financial costs {Mote 22) i 35,110 ) [ 6] ( 36,751 ) | 6)
7060 Share of gain/loss from
associated companies
accounted using the equity
method (MNotes 4 and 13) 4,176 1 3,473 1
7000 Total non-operating
income and expenses | 5,575 ) i 1) 26,094 4
7900 Profit before tax 156,243 28 133,366 20
7950 Income tax expenses (Notes 4, 5
and 23) 42,084 Fi 21,581 3
8200 Current net income 114,159 21 111,785 17

(To be Continued)
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{Continued}

Code

8310

8311

8316

8349

2300

a500

9710
2810

2020 2015

Amount H Amount

Other comprehensive income

ltems that will not be
reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Remeasurement of
defined benefit plan
(Motes 4 and 19) 5 35 - (5 1,334 )

Unrealized gain on
valuation of equity
instruments at
FWTOC! (Notes 4, B,
13 and 20) 7,996 1 898

Income tax on items nat
reclassified into
profit and loss (Motes
4 and 23) ( 10,374) (2] 11,614

Other comprehensive
incame - current { 2,340 ) | 1) 11,178

Total comprehensive income -

current § 111,819 _ 20 S 122,963

Earnings per share (Mote 24)

Basic $ 065 S 064
Diluted S 065 S 064

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

Wice Prasident; Chen
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Code

Al

Bl
B3

01

D3

05

1

Bl

B3
B5

M1

D1

03

()

a1

Balance at January 1, 2013

Apprapriation and distribution of 2018 earnings

Provision for statutary resenes
Provision for special reservas

Total appropriation and distribution of 2018
2arnings

2019 net income

2015 other camprehensive income - aftar tax

2019 total comprehensive income

Balance as at December 31, 2019

Appropriation and distribution of 2019 earnings

Prowvision for statutony reserves
Reversal of special reserves
Cash dividends on comman shares

Total appropriation and distribution of 2019
SArNINES

Adjustment to additional paid-in capital for
dividends paid to subsidiaries

2020 nat income

2020 other comprehensive income - after tax

2020 total comprehensive income

Disposal of equity Instrumeants at FVTOCI

Commen share capital

(Motes 2 and F0)

Additional paid-in capital

[Mate 20}

Retained earnings [Motes 4, 19 and 20)

Other eguity tem [Notes
4,8, 13 and 20}

Unrealized gains/lasses
an financial assets at

Statubary reserves

§ 2,087,250

2,087,250

5 483,638

483,638

23,335

s 450,265

9.010

8,010

459,275

11,072

11,072

Special reserves

5 441,850

- {

730,373 |

230,373 !

£ {

672,223

4 [
[ 176,716 )
- [

{ 176,716 )

33

Unappropriated sarnings

5 239,383

9,010 }

230,373}

239 383 |

111,785

1,067 |

110,718

110,718

11,0721
176,715

146,108 |

15,535

—

114,159
3d
114,189

O ¢ Ao Y 1=

73,841 )

Treasury stock

Unit: MTD thousand

Total FTOC iMole 20) Tatal equity
5 1,131,498 [& 168,245 1,283,541 ) § 2,250,600
111,785 & 2 111,785
[ 1,067 ) 12,245 z 11,178
110,718 12,245 : 122,963
1,242,216 { 156,000 1,283,541 ) 2,373,563
{__ 145108 ) - - : i 146,108

{ 146,108 |

114,159 R

30 ( 2,370 )

114,189 [ 2,370 )
{73841 74,374

i 148,108 )

23326

— R L

433



Z1

Balance as at December 31, 2020

President: e

5 506964 5 470,347 S 495,507 5 170,602 5 1,136456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consalidated financial statements.

Vice President; Chen Wen-
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Head of Accounting: Hugn

15 1283.54] )

5 2,363,033



Code

Tonlin DepartmEmLﬁE

Consolidated mﬂi’é? fEns;

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

AQOOLD
A20010
A20100
A20200
A20A00

AZ0900
A21200
A21300
A25900
AZ2300

A22500

A22600

AZ2F00

AZ23T00

A30000
431115

A31130
A31150
A31240
A31180
A31200
A31230
A3Z2130
A32150
A32220
A32180
AZ2230
A32240
(To be Continued)

Pre-tax profit for the current period

Adjustments far:

depreciation expense
Amartization

Met loss (gain) on financial assets and
liahilities at FWTPL

Financial costs

Interest income

Dividend income

Real estate inventary devaluation loss

Share of gain from associated
companies accounted using the
equity method

Loss {gain} on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Expenses reclassified from property,
plant, and equipment

Loss an disposal of investment
properties

Reversal of impairment an non-
financial assets

Changes in operating assets and liabilitias

Financial assets mandatory to be
carried at FVTPL

Mote receivable

Trade receivable

Lease receivable

Other receivables
Inventories
Prepayments and other current assets
Mote payable

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other payables

Other current liabilities

Met defined benefit liabilities

S35 -

Lon LSFE
Far periods from lanuary 1 to December 31, 2020 and 2019

d Subsidiaries

ch Flows

2020

= 156,243

81,590
S95

10,551
35,110

{ 580 )
{ 3,902 )

{ 4,176 )

3,948

372

( 15,000 )

{ 117,413 )
( 385 )

112
( 2,355 )

{ 1,487 )

57,142
2,405

( 4,222 )
29,247

{ 3,713 )

{ 6,476 )
36,277

{__ 5347)

[

Unit: NTD thousand

20149

S 133,366

85,019
525

10,853 )

36,751
1,475
5211
3,000

3,473 |

12

350

14,000 )

49,278
285
12,378
3,286
2,593
222,879
13,428
52,283 )
34,451 )
17,455 )
7,700
4,627

{ 1,472)



[Continued)

Code
A33000 Cash inflow fram operating activitios
A33100 Interest received
A33300 Interest paicd
A33200 Dividends received
A33500 Income tax paid
AAAR Met cash inflow from operating
activities
Cash flows from investing activities
BOOOLO Proceeds from liquidation aor capital
reductian of financial assets at FyTOC
BOOO4O Dispasal (acquisition) of financial assets
carried at cost after amortization
BOZ700 Acquisition of praperty, plant, and
equipment
BO2B0O0 Proceeds from disposal of praperty, plant
and equipment
BO3700 Decrease in refundable deposits
BO5A00 Acquisition of investment property
BOSE00 Proceeds from disposal of investment
property
BO7100 Increase idecrease) in equipment purchase
payable
BO7600 Dividends received from associated
companies
BBEB MNet cash inflow {outflow) from
investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Co0100 Decrease in short-term borrowings
CO1600 Proceeds from long-term borrowings
CO1700 Repayments of lang-term borrowings
CO03000 Decrease in guarantee deposits received
CQ4500 Payment of cash dividends
CCCC Met cash outflow from financing
activities
EEEE Met increase [decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

EDOIO0D Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents

-3 -

2020

§ 249,236

600
{ 35,579 )
3,902

(49,974 )

168,185

3,273

24,972

{ 29,133 )

17

38

17,537

3

- 3115

19,813

| 180,500 }
2,304,000

([ 2,694,000)

[ 2,106 )

(. 122,782 )

{195,388 )

( 7,390 )

106,177

2019
$ 434,780
1,248
( 36,751 |
5,211

{__ 5.508)

298,580

4,207
{ 20,058 )
{ 38,599 )

137
596
[ 535 )

I 157,231}

3,086

(208387 )

( 218,577 )
2,574,000

([ 2,539,000}

( 5,362 }

{ 183,939 )

1,654

— 1095393



EQOZ00

Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 5 g8, 787 5 106,177

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

B

EF Li  Vice President; Chen
A

President: Head of Accounting: Huagy

i
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Attachment 5

2020

Unit: MNTD

Opening unappropriated earnings 5 130,254,470

Disposal of equity Instruments at fair value through other comprehensive incame, with

7
cumulative gains/losses transferred directly to retainad earnings {73,840,078)

Actuarial gain/loss an defined benefit plan 30,101
Unappropriated earnings after adjustment 56,444,493
Plus: Current net income 114,155,076
Less: provision for statutory reserves {10%) (4,034,910)

Plus: reversal of special reserves previously provided accarding to Article 41 of the

Securities and Exchange Act 1,233,002
Earnings available for distribution in the current period 205,793,721
Distributicns

Shareholders' dividends [NTS0.5 cash per share) 104,362,500
Closing unappropriated earnings 5 101,431,221

MNote: 1, Distributions proposed for the current period will be allocated from 2020 after-tax garnings as a priority.

2. Appropriation of 2020 earnings, as shown abave, has been resalved during the board of directors meeting
held an March 22, 2021.

e :“'_|i

s ]
President:[ a-Li Vice President: Ch
DGG

i
I Head of Accounting: Hy €|| ;L._\
exa ]
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Attachment &

Comparisan of existing and revised Ethical Behavior Guidelines of Tanlin Department Store Co., Ltd.

Amended clause

Original clause Explanation

rliche 10 Purpose Article 1:

The following guidelines have been estahlished ta
promole understanding and complliance of ethical
standarcls for the Company's directors and managers
[including the President or cquivalent grade, vice
presidants or equivalent grade, assistant vice
presidents of equivalent grade, head ot finance, head
of acepunting, and other managerial positions and
authorized signatories within the Company) as well as
stakehclders,

Purpose

The fallowing guidelines have been estahlished to
pramote understanding and compliance of ethical
standards for the Company's directars, supervisors,
and managers {including the President or equivalent
prade, vice presidants or eguivalent grade, sssistant
vice presidents of equivalent grage, head of finance,
head of accounting, and clher managarizl positions
and authorized signataries within the Company] as
wiell 35 stakeholdars.

Amended to
accommodate
the
eslablishment
of Audit
Committes,

Article 2: Terms Article 2:
{1} Preventlon against conflict of interest:

Directors or managers of the Company must not
exploit their vested authorities orinfluance fior
improper gains, whether far self, spouse, orany 2nd-
degree relative or doser. If an affiliated enterprise
were to engage the Company in any transaction such
as loans, guarantees, transfer of assels, purchazes or
sales, the Campany’s director or manager involved in
the transaction shall take inilialive ta clarify whether
conflict of interest exists betwesn them and the
entity they reprasent,

[} &vaidance of private gains:

Directors or managers of the Company shall refrain
fram the following: (1] Exploiling the Campany's
property, informatian, ar the vested autharity for
opportunity of private gain; (2] Explaiting the
Company's property, information, or the vested
autharity for private gain; {3} Campeting with Lhe
Company,

When the Company is prasentad with a profitable
appertunity, directors and managers shall have the
respansibility to maximize legitimate gains that are
available to the Company,

(11 Duty of confidentiality:

Unless authorized ar legally permitted, directars and
managars are baund to maintaln confidentiality aver
the Company's infermation and that af its suppliers
and buyers. The types of information to be kept
confidential shall include all non-public infarmation
that have the potential Lo compromise the intesosts
of Lhe Company or custamers once axploited by or
leaked Lo competitors.

[I¥] Fair trading:

Directors or managers of the Company shall ensure
fair treatrment ta all suppliers, custamers,
competitors, and employees, and must refrain fram
any manipulation, concealment, or abuse of
infarmaticn gained in relation ta their positions,
They are prohibited fram making false disclasures of
material informatian and explaiting improper gains
through any unfair means.

{¥| Protection and proper use of Company assels:

Directors ar managers of the Company have tha
responsibility te protect the Company's assets and
make sure that they are used effectively and legalty
for their intended purposes, as theft, negligence, o
wastage all have a direct effect on the Campany's
prafitability,

W1 Begulatory complianca:

ferms
(1] Prevantion against canflict of interest;

Directors, supervisors, ar managers of the Company

Amended to
confarm with

must not exploit Lheir vestad authorities for improper |
gains, whethar far self, spouss, parent, child, or any
Ird-degrea relative or claser, The Company shall not
Bngage in transactions such as loan, guarantes, major
asset trading, purchase (sale) of goods ate. with
related enterprises of the ahavementioned porsonnel
until patential conflicls of intersst [or absence
theraof} have been explained to the board of
directars,

regulations and
a
accarmmodata
the
astablishment
af Audit
Committes,

(11} Avaidance of private gains:

Directers, supervisors, ar managers of Lhe Company
shall refrain from Lhe following: (1) Explaiting the
Cornpany's property, infermation, or the vested
authority for opportunity af private gain; (2]
Exploiting the Company’s property, information, ar
the vesled autharity tar private gain; (3) Competing
with the Campany.

When the Company is presented with a profitable

apportunity, directors, supervisers, and managers
shall have the respansibility to maximize legitimate

gains that are available to the Company,
(1) Duty of conlidentiality:

Unless authorized or legally permitted, directors,
supervisars, and managers are bound to maintain
confldentiality ovar the Campany's Infermatien and
that of its suppliers and buyers. The types of
informatian ta be kept confidential shall include all
non-public information that have the potential te
compramise the intaresls of the Company or
customers once exploed by or leaked to
competitors,

(I Fair trading:

Cirectors, supervisars, or managers of the Cempany
shall ensure falr Lreatment to all suppliers,
customers, competitors, and emplovess, and must
refrain from any manipulation, concealment, ar
abuse of informatian gained in relation ta their
positions. They are prohibited from making false
disclosures of material infarmation and exploiting
impraper gains through any unfair means.

(%) Pratection and proper use of Company assets:

Directors, supervisors, or managers of the Company
have the responsibility to protect the Company's
assets and maks sure that they are used effectively
and legally for their intended purposes, as that,
negligence, or wastage all have a direct effect on the
Campany's profitability.
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Directors or managers of the Company shall strive
Lo enhance compliance with the Securities and
Exchange Act and applicahle regulalions.

{¥ll] Encouragement far the reparting of any action t hat
is illegal ar in viclation of Ethizal Behavior
Guidelines:

The Company shall take pro-sctive steps to promole
ethical awareness internally, and encourape
employees to reporl suspicion or discovery of any
violation against [aws or Ethical Behavior Guidelines
te the Audil Committes, managers, the haad of
Internal Audit Gffice, or other appropriate
personnel. The Company has implemented a

whistleblowing system and will duly pratect
whistleblowers from relaliation.

W) Disciplinary measures:

Directers ar managers who violate Fthical Behaviar
Guidelines shall e disciplined sccording to relevant
policies and reparted immediately onto Markeat
Observation Post Systerm with details such as the
date of vinlation, the relevant facts, the violated
guidelines, and actions taken in response to it
Parties wha have heen penalized for violation
azainst the Guidelines are enlitled to raise appeal,

W1 Kegulatory complia nee:

Directors, superdsars, or managers at the Company
shall strive to enhance compliance with the Securities
and Exchange Act and applicable regulations.

(Il Encouragement for the reperting of any action that
Iz illegal orin vialation af Ethical Behavior
Guidefines:

The Company shall take pro-active steps to promote
athical awareness internally, and encourage
employess to raport suspicion or discovery of any
vialation against laws or Ethical Bahavior Guidelines
to supervisors, managers, the Chief internal Auditor,
or other appropriate persennal. The Company will

duly protect whistleblowers from retaliation.
[%11} Disciplinary measures:

Dirgctors, supervisors, or managers wha vialate
Ethical Behavior Guidelines shall be disciplined by
the Company according to The Company &ct and
relevant internal policies, and reported immediately
onto Market Ohservation Posl Systemn with details
such as the name and position af the violatar, data
of violation, the relovant facts, the vialated
guidelines, and actions taken in respanse ta it. The
Campany shall also pravide violators of Exhical
Behavior Guidelines the means to appeal and state
reasons in a board af directors meeting, and have
the baard of dircctors determine whether an action
constitutes violation throwgh a majority vote {those
Inwolved in the violation shall recuse from decision’.

Article 3 Exemption applicability and procedures

Directors or managers of the Campany may be
axempted fram compliance with the Ethical Behavior
Guidelines, provided that the decision is reselad in a

| Article 3; Exermnplion applicability and pracedures

Directars, supervisors, ar managers of the Company

may be exempted from compliance with the Ethical
Behaviar Guidelines, provided that the decision is

amanded to
confarm with
regulations and

board of directors meeting and timely disclosures are resolved in a board of directors meeting and timoky Lo
rmade on Market Observation Post System regarding disclosures are made on Market Obsarvation Post accommodate
the date of board-approved exemption, independent System regarding the title and name of exempted Lhe
directars’ ohjections or reservations, duratian of persannel, date of board-approved exemption, establishment
exemption, reasan of exemption, and applicable rules duration of exemptian, reason of exemption, and af Audit
so that shareholders may evaluate whether the baard's applicable rules sc thal shareholders may evaluate Cammittza.
decisions are apprapriate, These praclices will help whether the board's decisions are appropriate.
deter unjustified or suspicious exemptions, while
ensuring proper control over existing exemptions far
the protection of the Company’s interests.
Artlele 4: Diselosure method Article 4 Disclosure method
The Campany shall disclase the Guidelines and any The Campany shall disclose the Guldelines and any Amended to
amendmants thereof on its website, in annual reports, amendments thereof in annual reparts, prospoctus and | conform with
prospectus and on Markel Observation Post System, on Market Ghservation Post System. regulations.

Article 5: Implemeantation Article 5 Implementation

Amended to
conform with
regulations and

The Guidelines shall be implemanted once approved by
the board of directers, and submitted for
acknowledgment by supervisars and during shareholder

The Guidelines shall be implemented once approved by
the board of directars, and reparted during sharehaldar
meeting on a [ater date. Tha same applies to subseguent

amendmeants, mesting on alater date. The same applias to to
subsequent amandments. accammodata
The Guidelings were first established an October 2, the
2114, establishment
of Audis
Coemmittes,

[articls 6: Amend ments
Added revisicn
dates,

The Guidelings were first established an October 2,
2014,

Amendment was made on December 28, 2020,
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Attachment 7

Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.

Comparison of Existing and Revised Articles of Incorporation

Amended clauses

Original clauses

Explanation

Article 29 nnnuél_surpluses contluded by the Article 29

Company are first subject to taxation and
reimbursement of losses carried from
previous years, followed by a 10%
provision for statutory reserve and
provision or reversal of special reserves
as the laws may require. Any surpluses
remaining will e added to unappropriated
earnings accumulated from previous
years, for which the board of directors
will propose an earnings appropriation
plan and seek resolution in a shareholder
meeting before distribution.

The Company is bound by laws to make

provision for special earnings reserve

from previous years for any net contra-

equity balances accumulated under

other contra-equity items in previous

years before distributing earnings. If the

Company is unable to make adequate

provision from unappropriated earnings

carried from previous years, the

Company shall treat current net income

and non-net income items as

unapprapriated earnings and make

provisions accordingly.

Any cash distribution of dividend, profit,
statutory reserve, or capital reserve,
whether in whale or in part, must be
rescived in a board meeting with maore
than twao-thirds of the board present,
voted in favor by more than half of
attending directars, and reparted in the
upeoming shareholder meeting.

&5 a conventional department stare, the
Company experiences no major change in
sales valume but foresees moderate
growth,

After taken into consideration its long-
term development plans and goals of
maximizing shareholders' interest, the
Company has adopted a dividend policy

Annual surpluses concluded by the
Company are first subject to taxation
and reimbursement of losses carried
from previous years, followed by a
10% provision for statutary reserve
and provision or reversal of special
reserves as the laws may reguire. Any
surpluses remaining will be added to
unapprapriated earnings accumulated
from previous years, for which the
board of directars will propose an

earnings appropriation plan and seek
resolution in a shareholder meeting
befare distribution,

Any cash distribution of dividend,
profit, statutory reserve, or capital
reserve, whether in whale or in part,
must be resolved in a board meeting
with more than two-thirds of the
board present, voted in faver by mare
than half of attending directors, and
repartad in the upcoming sharehalder
meeting.

As a conventional department store,
the Company experiences no major

change in sales volume but faresees
maderate growth

After taken into consideration its long-
term development plans and goals of
maximizing shareholders’ interest, the
Company has adopted a dividend
palicy that makes consistent payouts
primarily in cash; however, the
Company may adjust its dividend policy
for the following year depending an
current year's profitakility, capital
availability, and capital plans for the
following year.

Owverall, cash dividends shall nat
account for less than 50% of the sum af
cash dividends plus stock dividends .

-4] -

. Amended to

canform with
regulations and
actual
practices,




that makes consistent payouts. Mo less
than 10% af current year's distributable
earnings shall be paid to shareholders as
dividends, and cash dividends shall not
amount to less than 50% of the sum of
cash dividends and stock dividends.
However, the Company may forgo
dividend payment if distributable earnings

amount to NT50.2 ar less in a given vear.
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!Artic!n 31

The Articles of Incorporation was first

established on July 5, 1982,

The 1st amendment was made on
July 17, 1982,

The 2nd amendment was made an
August 3, 1982

The 3rd amendment was made on
December 28, 1982,

The 4th amendment was made an
lanuary 31, 1983,

The 5th amendment was made an
August 12, 1983,

The 6th amendment was made on
August 1, 1984,

The 7th amendment was made on
March 25, 1991,

The 8th amendment was made on
MNovember 20, 1991.

The 9th amendment was made on
June 25, 1992,

The 10th amendment was made on
September 21, 1993,

The 11th amendment was made on
June 23, 1554,

The 12th amendment was made an
May 24, 1995,

The 13th amendment was made on
May 15, 19946,

The 14th amendment was made on
May 28, 1997

The 15th amendment was made en
June 12, 1998,

The 16th amendment was made on
lune 13, 2000.

The 17th amendment was made on
hay 21, 2001,

The 18th amendment was made on
June 5, 2002,

The 19th amendment was made an
June 4, 2004,

The 20th amendment was made on
Mlay 12, 2005,
The 21st amendment was made on
May 12, 2006.
The 22nd amendment was made an
June 16, 2009,

The 23rd amendment was made on
June 15, 2010,

The 24th amendment was made an
June 22, 2011.

Article 31

LA

The Articles of Incorporation was
first established on July 5, 1982,
The 1st amendment was made an
luly 17, 1982,

The 2nd amendment was made on
AUpgust 3, 1982,

The 3rd amendment was made an
December 28, 1952,

The 4th amendment was made an
lanuary 31, 1983,

The 5th amendment was made on
August 12, 1983,

The &6th amendment was made on
August 1, 1984,

The 7th amendment was made on
March 25, 1991.

The 8th amendment was made on
Movember 20, 1991,

The 9th amendment was made on
lune 25, 1952,

The 10th amendment was made on
September 21, 1993,

The 11th amendment was made on
lune 23, 1994,
The 12th amendment was made on
May 24, 1995,
The 13th amendment was made an
May 15, 1996,
The 14th amendment was made an
May 28, 1997,
The 15th amendment was made an
June 12, 1998,

The 16th amendment was made on
June 13, 2000.

The 17th amendment was made an
Mlay 21, 2001.

The 18th amendment was made an
lune 5, 2002,

The 19th amendment was made an
June 4, 2004,

The 20th amendment was made an
May 12, 2005.
The 21st amendment was made an
May 12, 2006.

The 22nd amendment was made on
June 16, 2009,

The 23rd amendment was made on
June 15, 2010,

The 24th amendment was made on
June 22, 2011,

|

|Addad re-.'jalnn |
dates




The 25th amendment was made on
June 5, 2012,

The 26th amendment was made an
June 4, 2014,

The 27th amendment was made on
lune &, 2016,

The 28th amendment was made on
June 7, 2018.

The 29%th amendment was made on
June 28, 2019,

The 30th amendment was made on

June 23, 2021,

The 25th amendment was madr:: on
June 5, 2012

The 26th amendment was made on
June 4, 2014,

The 27th amendment was made on
June B, 2016.

The 28th amendment was made on
June 7, 2018

The 29th amendment was mads on
June 28, 20149,
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Attachment 8

Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.

Comparison of existing and revised Directors Election Policy

Amended clauses Original clauses | Causeof
amendment

Article 3 Directors of the Company shall be elected Article 3 Directors of the Company are elected using |Revised
using the cumulative voting system. the cumulative single-registered voting wording.

method. Conference pass serial number

can be used for voter registration instead.

Article 4 When electing directors, each share shall be  Article 4 When electing directors, each share shall  [Revised

vested with voting rights equal to the be vested with voting rights equal to the  [warding,
nurmber of directors to be elected. These number of directors to be elected. The

vating rights may be concentrated on one bhoard of directors will prepare ballots with
candidate or spread across multiple voting rights equal to the number of

candidates. directors to be elected and distribute them

to sharehalders. These ballots may be
concentrated on one candidate or spread
across multiple candidates.

Independent directars shall be elected
during the same vating session as non-
independeant directors, and have positions
allocated separately. Independent directors shall be elected
during the same voting session as non-
independent directors, and have positions
allocated separately.

Article 8 The convener of shareholder meeting shall | Article & When preparing ballots, the board of Amended to
produce ballats in guantities that match the directors shall number each ballot conform with
number of directars to be elected, and according to conference pass 1D, and actual practices,
specify the number of voting rights before specify the number of voting rights.

distributing them te shareholder meeting
participants. Conference pass serial number
can be printed on the ballot for identification
purpose instead of voter's name,

Article 8 A ballot box shall be made available by the |Article 8 A ballot box shall be made available by the |Amended to

shareholder meeting convener, and shall be board of directors, and shall be openead for |conform with
opened for inspection by the ballot examiner inspection by the ballot examiner prior to \actual practices.
prior ta voting. voting. ‘

Article 9 Ballots are considered void in any of the Article®  If the candidate is also a sharehelder, |Adju5ted article
following circumstances: vaters will have to specify both numbering to

shareholder account name and number in |accammodate

1. Use of ballot that is not prepared by |
the appropriate column of the ballot. If the |deletion of

authorized convener,

o, T candidate is not a shareholder, the Article 9.
- Casting of blank ballot into the ballot box. candidate's name and ID card number will
3. Ballots with illegible writing or are altered. have ta be specified on the ballet instead,

and cast into the ballot box. If the
candidate is a government agency or
corporate entity, voters may either specify
the name of the government
agency/corporate entity, as described in
Paragraph 1, Article 27 of the Company

4. The identity of the candidate specified in
ballot dees not match the candidates list.

5. Ballots that contain writings other than
allocated votes.




Act, or specify the names of the
government agency/corporate entity and
its representative, as described in
Paragraph 2, Article 27 of The Company

Adjusted article

Adjusted article

Adjusted article
numkbering and
added revisicn

Act,

Article 10 Ballots are to be counted openly Article 10 Ballots are considered void in any of the
immediately after voting. The chairperson following circumstances: numbering.
shall announce on-site the outcome of the b Ukt of Ballotaiat dons rot contonn
e with the formats specified in this Policy.

2. Casting af blank ballot into the ballot
broc,

3, Ballots with illegible writing or are
altered.

4. Where the candidate is a sharehaolder,
the written identity and shareholder
account number do not match the
shareholder registry; or where the
candidate is a non-shareholder, the
written name and D card number da
not match.

5. The names of two or mare candidates
are printed an the same ballot.

&, Ballots that contain writings other than
the candidate's name and sharehaolder
account number {ar 1D card number).

7. The candidate's name written on the
ballot coincides with anather
shareholder, but no shareholder
account number or 1D card number is
provided for identification.

Article 11 Any details that are not addressed in this Article 11 A ballot box shall be preparad for director
Policy shall be governed by The Company Act election, and apenead by the ballot numbering.
and relevant regulations. examiner after voting is completed.

Article 12 This Palicy shall take effect once approved  |Article 12 Ballots are to be counted upen'll,r_“ B
during shareholder meeting; the same immediately after voting. The chairperson
applies to all subsequent revisions, shall announce on-site the autcame of the
The Palicy was first established on June 5, VOIE, cate
2002,

The 1st amendment was made on lung 7,
2018,
The 2nd amendment was made on June 22,
2021,
Article 13 Deletad. Article 13 Any details that are not addressed in this

Policy shall be governed by The Company
Act and relevant regulations.
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Article 14 Deleted, Article 14 This Policy shall take effect once

approved during shareholder meeting;
the same applies to all subsequent
revisions,

The Policy was first established on June
5, 2002.

The 1st amendment was made on June
7, 2018,
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Attachment 3

The 2021 annual general meeting of Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.

List of Director (including Independent Director) Candidate Nominees
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Attachment 10

The 2021 annual general meeting of Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.

Details on removal of directors' competing business involvement

Yang Wen-Ching

Cheng Shin Law Firm
SHENMAO Technology Ine.
International Bills Finance Corporation
Manoplus Limited (Cayman) Taiwan Branch
Chih Chin Financial Consullancy

Chengsin Consulting Company

Lu Yu Ting

Name Company of concurrent involvement Rale

Su Chien-I Chung Ilsiao Enterprise Co., Lid. Chairman
JIN DUO LIH ENTERPRISES PTY. LTD. Chairman

WENG CITUN-CHIN SHUEN SHYANG  CO, LTD. Chairman
Chuny Hsiao Enterprise Ca,, Lid. Dhircotors

JIN DUO LIH ENTERPRISLES PIY. L1 Dirzctors

Weng Ju-1 SHUEN SHYANG  CO. LTD, Direclors

Fu Chen Co., Lid. Chairman

JIN DU LIH ENTERPRISES PTY. ITD. Directors

Weng Hua-Tieng SHUEN SHYANG CO, LTD. Directors
Chia Yu Co., Lid, Chairman

JIN DUO LIH ENTERPRISES PTY, LTD. Directors

Weng TTua-Li SHUEN SHYANG  CO., LTD. Dhrectors
Sheng Wei Co, Lid, Chairman

BigSun nvesunent  Co, Lid, Chairman

Wholesome Life Science Co., Lid. Chairman

HUANG CHUNG-SHEN(G Mushroom Technology Co., Lid. Chairman
Universal Innovation Ceo., Lid. Chairman

FlySun Development Co., Ltd, Direclors
SUYONG-CHUN UN INVESTMENT CO., LTD. Supervisor
Ken Tai Construction Co., Lid. Chairman

Chan Shen-Hua i
Chen Chuan Co., Ltd. Chairman
. . Chairman ]
Lver Rich Asset Management Co., Lid.
Director

Independent Thirector

Dvirector {corporate
representative)

Dyirectors
Directors

Dhrectors

Meabvita Taiwan Led.
Albert Investment Co., Ltd.

Chairman

Chairman
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Appendix 1

Tonlin Departmen

t Store Co., Ltd.

Directors' Shareholding

{1} Minimum shareholding required from all directors and quantity shown in shareholders registry:

Title Required sharehalding Quantity shown in
shareholders registry
Directar 12,000,000 shares 40,355,577 shares

Mote: Book closure start date: April 24, 2021

(1) Derails of direclors’ sharcholding

Title Mame Quantity shown in Remarks
shareholders registry
Chairman Su Chien-l 5,581,075 shares
Director UM INVESTMENT C0O,, LTD. 6,835,060 shares Representative;
5u Yong-Chun
Director JIN DUO LIH ENTERPRISES 22,936,442 shares Representative:
FTY. LTD. Weng Chun-Chih
Weng Ju-l
Weng Hua-Tieng
Weng Hua-Li
Director Big5un Investment Co., Ltd. 5,002,000 shares Representative:
Huang Chung-5heng
Independent Chan shen-Hua 0
Directar
Independent Lu Yu Ting 0
Director
Independent Yang Wen-Ching 0
Director

MNote: Book closure start date: April 24, 2021
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Appendix 2

VI,

VIl
VI

X

Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.

Shareholder Meeting Conference Rules

Unless otherwise specified in law, shareholder meetings of the Company shall proceed according to the
Conference Rules,

An attendance lag shall be prepared to record shareholders' attendance; alternatively, sharehalders may
present attendance cards to signify their presence.

The number of shares represented in a meeting is calculated based on attendance log records ar the
attendance cards collected, plus the number of shares that have voting rights exercised in writing or through
electronic means.

Attendance and votes in a shareholder meeting are calculated based on the number of shares represented.

Sharehalder meetings shall be held at locations that are suitable and convenient for shareholders to attend.
Meetings must not cammence anytime earlier than 9AM ar later than 3PN,

Shareholder meetings that are convened by the board of directors shall be chaired by the Chairman. If the
Chairman is an leave ar is unable to exercise duties for any reason, the Vice Chairman will act on behalf; if
there is no Vice Chairman or if the Vice Chairman is also an leave or is unable to exercise duties for any reason,
the Chairman may appoint one managing directar to assume acting duty; if there is no managing director, ane
of the directors shall be appointed ta perfarm acting duty; if no delegate is appointed by the Chairman, ane
shall be appointed ameng managing directors or directars. If the shareholder meeting is eanvened by any
entitled party other than the board of directors, the convener will act as the meeting ehairperson. If thera are
two or mare authorized conveners, ane shall be appointad amang them to act as the meeting chairperson.

The Company may summan its lawyers, certified public accountants, and any relevant personnel to be present
at shareholder meetings.

Organizers of the shareholder meeting must wear proper identification or arm badges.
The Company's shareholder meetings must be recorded in video or audio, and kept for at least 1 year.

The chairperson should anneunce commencement of meeting as soon as it is due. However, if current
attendees represent less than half of the Company's cutstanding shares, the chairperson may announce to
postpone the meeting up to two times, for a period totaling no mere than ane hour, If attending sharehalders
still represent mare than one-third but less than half of outstanding shares after twa postpanements, the
attending sharehelders may reach a tentative resalution according ta Paragraph 1, Article 175 of The Company
Act.

If the number of shares represented accumulate to more than half of all outstanding shares as the meeting
progresses, the chairperson may propose the tentative resolutions far final voting according to Article 174 of
The Campany Act.

For shareholder meetings that are canvened by the board of directars, the board of directors will determine
the meeting agenda. The agenda can not be changed unless resalved during the shareholder meeting.

The above rule also applies to shareholder meetings that are convened by any entitled party ather than the
board of directors.

In either of the twa arrangements described ahove, the chairperson can not dismiss the meeting while a motion
{including special motions) is still in progress. If the chairperson violates shareholder conference rules by calling
for adjournment when it is not allowed to do so, attending shareholders may elect another chairperson with
the support of more than half of voting rights represented on-site to cantinue the meeting.

Once a meeting is adjourned, shareholders may not elect to continue the meeting with anather chairperson or
at a different venue,

Shareholders who wish to speak during the meeting must produce an opinion slip detailing the topic,
shareholder ID (or the attendance ID serial) and shareholder's name. The order of shareholders' comments is
determined by the chairperson.
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Shareholders who submit an opinian slip without actually speaking are considered to have remained silent. If
the shareholder's actual comments differ from those stated in the opinion slip, the actual comments expressed
shall be taken into record.

While a shareholder is speaking, other sharehalders can nat speak simultaneausly or interfere in any way unless
agreed by the chairperson and the person speaking. The chairperson shall restrain any persan wha violates this
process.

Shareholders cannot speak for more than twa times, for 5 minutes each, on the same topic withaut the
consent of the chairperson.

The chairpersan may restrain shareholders who are in violation of the above rule ar interrupt any comments
that are irrelevant to the topics discussed.

Corporate entities may only appoint one representative to attend shareholder meetings.

Where a corperate shareholder has appointed twao or mare representatives to attend the shareholder meeting,
anly one representative may speak per motion.

After a sharehalder has finished speaking, the chairperson may answer the shareholder's queries persanally or
appoint any relevant personnel to do so.

The chairpersan may announce to discontinue further discussion if the topic is considered to have been
sufficiently discussed ta procesd with voting,

The chairperson shall appoint ballot examiners and ballot counters to support the voting process. The ballat
examiner must be a shareholder,

Outcome of a vote shall be documented and announced on site.
The chairperson may call the meeting into recess at a suitable time.

Unless otharwise regulated by The Company Act or stated in the Articles of Incorparation, a motion is passed
when supported by shareholders representing mare than half of total voting rights in the mesting.

In cases where several amendment or alternative solutions have been proposed at the same time, the
chairperson shall determine the order in which propasals are to be voted. However,if any solution is passed, all
other prapaosals shall be deemed rejected and no further voting is necessary.

The chairperson may assign disciplinary officers {or security staff) to help maintain order in the meeting. While
maintaining order in the meeting, all disciplinary officers {ar security staff) shall wear arm badges that identify
their role as "Disciplinary Officer.”

Any matters that are not addressed in the Rules shall be governed by The Company Act and Articles of
Incorporatian.

The above rules shall take effect immediately once approved during shareholder meeting; the same applies ta
all subsequent revisions.

The Rules were first established an June 12, 1998,
Amendments were made on June 5, 2002.

Amendments were made on June 22, 2020.
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Appendix 3

Article 1

Article 2

Article 3

Article 4

Article 5

Article &

Article 7

Article 8

Article 9

Article 10

Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.
Articles of Incorporation
Chapter OneGeneral Provisions

The Company is incorparated in accordance with The Campany Act, and has been named Tanlin
Department Store Co., Ltd.

The Company's industry classifications are

1. F301010Department Stores.
2. F3010205upermarkets,

3. FA01010International Trade,
4, F>01060Restaurants.

5.
&
7
8

G202010Parking area Operators,

. H701010Housing and Building Development and Bental.
. H702100Real Estate Leasing.

- Z299999All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except those that are subject

to special approval.

The Company may offer guarantee to external parties as needed for business activities, subject to
the Company's endorsement and guarantee procedures.

The Company is headguartered in Taipei City, and may establish domestic ar foreign branches
subject to board of directors' approval.

Public announcements shall be duly made in accordance with the methods described in Article 28 of
The Campany Act.

Chapter TwoShare Capital

The Company may become limited liability shareholder of ather companies; its tatal investments are
naot subject to the "40% paid-up capital” restriction imposed under Article 13 of The Company Act,
but the amount of which is to be determined by board of directars of the Company.

The Comparny has an authorized capital of Three Billion Mew Taiwan Dollars in three hundred million
shares. Each share has a face value of Ten Mew Taiwan Dellars. The board of directors is authorized
to issue this capital in multiple offerings.

Share certificates of the Company shall be issued with the signature ar seal of director{s} capable of
representing the Company and with the certification of a bank that is legally permitted to act as a
share certificate certifier. Shares of the Company may be issued in non-tangible form, subject to
registration with Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation,

Unless otherwise specified by law and securities regulation, issues concerning transfer of share
ownership, pledge of shares, loss of share certificate, ownership inheritance, gifting, loss/change of
seal, change of address, and share-related affairs shall be handled accarding to “Regulatians
Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies.”

Transfer of share ownership shall be suspended during the 60 days prior to an annual general
meeting, ar during the 30 days prior to an extraordinary shareholder meeting, or during the 5 days
prior ta the baseline date of dividend, profit sharing, or rights distribution.
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Article 11

Article 12

Article 13

Article 14

Article 15

Article 16

Article 17

Article 18

Article 19

Chapter ThreeShareholder Meetings

lhe Company holds two types of shareholder meeting: the annual general meeting and
extraordinary shareholder meeting. The annual general meeting is held once a year within six
months by the board of directors after the end of an accounting period, whereas extraordinary
sharehalder meetings may be held whenever deemed necessary, subject to compliance with the
rezlevant laws.,

Canvention of an annual general meeting shall be communicated to sharehalders with details
including date, venue and agenda at least 30 days in advance, or 15 days in advance far
extraordinary sharehaolders meetings.

If a sharehalder is unable to attend the shareholder meeting in person, a proxy can be appainted by
completing the Company's proxy form and by specifying the scope of delegated authority. However,
a proxy may not represent maore than 3% of total voting rights in aggregate when reprasenting two
or more sharehalders during the meeting, Voting rights that exceed this thresheld shall be excluded
from calculation. Matters concerning the use of proxy form shall alse comply with "Regulations
Gaverning the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Carmpanies.”

Unless otherwise regulated by laws, sharehalders shall be entitled to one voting right for every share
held.

Except otherwise regulated by The Company Act, a shareholder meeting resolution is passed when
more than 50% of all outstanding shares are represented in the meeting, and that the maotion is
vated in favar by more than 50% of all voting rights represented at the meeting.

The Company's sharehelders may also vote using electronic means. Shareholders who vote using the
electronic method are considered to have attended the shareholder meeting in persan. Electronic
voting shall proceed as regulated by law.

Shareholder meetings that are canvened by the board of directors shall be chaired by the Chairman;
if the Chairman is absent, a persan of acting duty shall be appointed according to Article 208 of The
Company Act. For shareholder meetings that are convened by any authorized party other than the
board of directors, the convener shall chair the meeting. IF twa or mare parties are egually eligible to
serve as convener, one shall be elected among themselves to serve as convener,

Sharehaolder meeting resolutions shall be compiled into detailed minutes, signed or sealed by the
chairperson, and disseminated to each shareholder by na later than 20 days after the meeting,
Preparation and distribution of meeting minutes can be made in electronic form.

Distribution of meeting minutes, as mentioned in Paragraph 1, may proceed by way of public
announcement.

Chapter FourDirectors

The Company shall have 9 ta 11 directors who are elected using the nomination system from the list
of director candidates presented during the shareholder meeting. Directors shall serve a term of 3
years, which is renewable if re-elected. The minimum number af shares to be held in aggregate of all
board members shall comply with the rules of the authority.

The number of directors mentioned above shall include no fewer than three independent directors.
Independent directors shall be elected during shareholder meeting from the list of nominated
candidates using the namination system. Restrictions concerning independent directors' eligibility,
shareholding, concurrent employment, nomination, method of election and all other compliance
issues are governed by relevant laws of the autharity,

The Company shall comply with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act by assembling an
Audit Committee that consists entirely of independent directors. All matters relating to the Audit
committee, its members, and exercise of duties shall comply with rules of the securities autharity,

If the board loses more than one-third of its directors or if independent directars are entirely
dismissed, the board of directors shall convene an extracrdinary shareholder meeting within 60 days
to elect new members for the shortfall. In which case, the newly elected members shall serve the
remaining term of the existing board.
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Article 20

Article 21

Article 22

Article 23

Article 24

Article 25

Article 26

Article 27

Article 28

The board of directors shall appaoint one Chairman during a board meeting with more than two-thirds
of directors present, and with the support of more than half of all attending directars. The Chairman
serves as the Company's representative to the outside world.

Canvention of a board of directars meeting must be advised to all directors with detailed agenda at
least 7 days in advance. However, meetings can be held in shorter natice in case of emergency.

The ahovementioned meeting advice can be delivered via written correspondence, fax, or electronic
form.

If the Chairman is unable to perform duties due to leave of absence or any reason, a delegate shall be
appointed in accordance with Article 208 of the Company Act.

Unless otherwise regulated by The Company Act, board resolution is passed anly if more than half of
total board members are present in a meeting, and with maore than half of attending directors voting
in favar.

A director who has a personal interest in the matter under discussion at a board meeting shall explain
to the board meeting the essential contents of such personal interest.

Directors who are unable to attend personally may appaint other directars to attend on their behalf,
by issuing a proxy form detailing the scope of authority delegated to the proxy attendee. Each director
can only represent the presence of ane other director.

Details of board meeting shall be recorded in minutes and signed ar sealed by the chairperson.
Minutes are to be distributed to directars and supervisors within 20 days after each meeting. The
minutes shall contain details including the date and venue of meeting, the name of chairpersan, the
method of resalution, and the progress and outcome of each motion. The minutes, the attendance
log, and proxy forms shall be retained within the Campany.

The Campany may compensate directors regardless of the state of its profitability. The board of
directors is authorized to determine the level of compensation based on individual directors'
participation and contribution to the Company's operations, and in reference to industry peers.

Directors or sharehaolders whao concurrently serve as employees shall be paid salaries at the same rate
as ordinary employees.

The board of directors may purchase liahility insurance covering the entire board over the duration of
service if necessary, provided that the proposal is raised in a board meeting with more than half of all
directors present and supported by mare than half of attending directars

Chapter FiveManagers

The Campany shall have one President and numerous vice president and manager positions,
Appaintmeant, dismissal, and compeansation of wham shall comply with Article 29 of The Campany Act.

Chapter SixAccounting

The board of directors shall prepare: {1) A Business Repart, (2) Financial statements, and (3] Earnings
appropriation ar loss reimbursement proposal at the end of each financial year. The above documents
shall be presented for acknowledgment during annual general meeting.

Profits concluded from a financial year are subject to employee remuneration of 0.1%-4% and director
remuneration of no more than 4%. However, profits must first be reserved to offset against cumulative
losses {including adjustments to unappropriated earnings) if any.

Employee remuneration, as mentioned in the preceding Paragraph, can be paid in cash or in shares.
Payments may also be made to employees of subordinate companies that satisfy the eligibility criteria.
The above director remuneration can only be paid in cash,

The two decisions above are resolved by the board of directors and reported during the next
sharehalder meeting.
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Article 29

Article 30

Article 31

Annual surpluses concluded by the Company are first subject to taxation and reimbursement of
previous losses, followed by a 10% prowvision for statutory reserves and provision or reversal of special
reserves as the laws may require. Any surpluses remaining will be added to unappropriated earnings
accumulated from previous years, for which the board of directors will propose an earnings
appropriation plan and seek resolution in a shareholder meeting befare distribution.

Ary cash distribution of dividend, profit, statutory reserve, ar capital reserve, whether in whaole or in
part, must be resolved in a board meeting with mare than two-thirds of the board present, vated in
favor by more than half of attending directors, and reported in the upcoming sharehalder meeting.

As a conventional department store, the Company experiences no major change in sales volume but
foresees maoderate growth. After taken into consideration its long-term development plans and goals
of maximizing shareholders' interest, the Company has adopted a dividend policy that makes
cansistent payouts primarily in cash; however, the Company may adjust its dividend policy for the
following year depending on current year's profitability, capital availability, and capital plans for the
following year. Overall, cash dividends shall not account for less than 50% of the sum of cash
dividends plus stock dividends.

Chapter 5even  Supplemental Provisions

Any matters that are not addressed in the Articles of Incorparation shall be gaverned by The Company
Act and relevant regulations.

The Articles of Incorporation was first established on July 5, 1982,
The 1st amendment was made an luly 17, 1982

The 2nd amendment was made on August 3, 1982,

Tha 3rd amendment was made on December 28, 1982,
The 4th amendment was made on January 31, 1983,
The 5th amend ment was made on August 12, 1983,
The 6th amandment was made on August 1, 1984,

The 7th amendment was made on March 25, 1991,
The Bth amendment was made on November 20, 1991,
The 9th amendment was made on June 25, 1992,

The 10th amendment was made on September 21, 1993,
The 11th amendment was made on June 23, 1994,

The 12th amendment was made an May 24, 1995,

The 13th amendment was made on May 15, 19986,

The 14th amendment was made an May 28, 1937,
The 15th amendment was made on June 12, 1998,

The 16th amendment was made an June 13, 2000,
The 17th amendment was made on May 21, 2001,
The 18th amendment was made on June 5, 2002.
The 15th amendment was made on June 4, 2004,
The 20th amendment was made on May 12, 2005,
The 21st amendment was made on May 12, 2006,

The 22nd amendment was made on lune 16, 2009,

The 23rd amendment was made on June 15, 2010,

The 24th amendment was made on June 22, 2011,

The 25th amendment was made on June 5, 2012,
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The 26th amendment was made on lune 4, 2014,
The 27th amendment was made on June 8, 2016.
The 28th amendment was made on June 7, 2018,

The 29th amendment was made on June 28, 2019,
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Appendix 4

Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.

Ethical Behavior Guidelines

Article 1 Purpaose

The fallowing guidelines have been established to promote understanding and compliance of ethical
standards for the Company's directors, supervisars, and managers (including the President or equivalent
grade, vice presidents or equivalent grade, assistant vice presidents of equivalent grade, head of finance,
head af accounting, and other managerial positions and authorized signatories within the Company) as
well as stakeholders,

article 2 Terms

(1)

(i

[}

(V)

(V)

{wi)

I

Frevention against conflict of interest:

Directors, supervisors, or managers of the Company must not explait their vested autharities for
improper gains, whether far self, spouse, parent, child, or any 3rd-degree relative or closer. The
Company shall not engage in transactions such as loan, guarantee, major asset trading, purchase
{sale) of goods etc. with related enterprises of the abovementioned personnel until potential
conflicts of interest {ar absence thereof) have been explained to the board of directors.

Avopidance of private gains:

Directars, supervisors, of managers of the Company shall refrain from the follewing: {1) Exploiting
the Company's property, infarmation, or the vested authaority for opportunity of private gain; (2}
Exploiting the Company's property, infarmation, or the vested authaority for private gain; (3)
Competing with the Campany.

When the Company is presented with a profitable apportunity, directors, supervisors, and
managers shall have the responsibility to maximize legitimate gains that are available to the
Cormpany.

Duty of confidentiality:

Unless authorized or legally permitted, directors, supervisors, and managers are bound to maintain
confidentiality over the Company's information and that of its suppliers and buyers. The types of
information to be kept canfidential shall include all non-public infarmatian that have the potential
to compromise the interests of the Company or customers once exploited by or leaked to
competitors.

Fair trading:

Directors, supervisors, ar managers of the Company shall ensure Fair treatment to all suppliers,
customers, competitors, and employees, and must refrain from any manipulation, concealment, or
ahuse of infarmation gained in relation to their positions. They are prohibited from making false
disclosures of material information and exploiting improper gains through any unfair means.
Protection and proper use of Company assets:

Directors, supervisors, or managers of the Company have the responsibility to protect the
Company's assets and make sure that they are used effectively and legally for their intended
purposes, as theft, negligence, or wastage all have a direct effect on the Company's profitability,

Regulatory compliance:

Directars, supervisors, or managers of the Company shall strive to enhance compliance with the
Securities and Exchange Act and applicable regulatians.

Encauragement for the reporting of any action that is illegal or in violation of Ethical Behavior
Guidelines:

The Company shall take pro-active steps to promote ethical awareness internally, and encourage
employees to report suspicion ar discovery of any vialation against laws ar Ethical Behavior
Guidelines to supervisors, managers, the Chief Internal Auditor, or ather appropriate persannel. The
Company will duly protect whistleblowers from retaliation.
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Article 3

Article 4

Article &

[y Disciplinary measures:
Directors, supervisars, or managers who violate Ethical Behavior Guidelines shall be disciplined by
the Company according to The Company Act and relevant internal policies, and reparted
immediately anto Market Ohservation Post System with details such as the name and paosition of
the violator, date of violation, the relevant facts, the violated guidelines, and actions taken in
response toit. The Comparny shall also provide vialators of Ethical Behavior Guidelines the means to
appeal and state reasons in a board of directors meeting, and have the board of directors determine
whether an action constitutes violation through a majority vote (those involved in the vialation shall
recuse from decision),

Exemption applicability and procedures

Directors, supervisors, or managers of the Company may be exempted from compliance with the Ethical
Behavior Guidelines, provided that the decision is resolved in a board of directors meeting and timely
disclosures are made on Market Observation Post System regarding the title and name of exempted
personnel, date of board-approved exemption, duration of exemption, reason of exemption, and
applicable rules so that shareholders may evaluate whether the board's decisions are appropriate.

Disclosure methad
The Campany shall disclose the Guidelines and any amendments thereof in annual reparts, prospectus and
on Market Observation Post System.

Implementation

The Guidelines shall be implemented once approved by the board of directors, and submitted faor
acknowledgment by supervisars and during shareholder meeting on a later date. The same applies to
subseguent amendments.

The Guidelines were first established on October 2, 2014,
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Appendix 5
Tonlin Department Store Co., Ltd.

Directors Election Policy

Article 1 Election of directors shall proceed according to the terms of this Policy.

Article 2 Director elections shall be held during sharehalder meetings. Elections shall proceed using to the
nomination system mentioned in Article 192 of The Company Act.

Article 3 Directors of the Company are elected using the cumulative single-registered voting methad.
Conference pass serial number can be used for voter registration instead

Article 4 When electing directors, each share shall be vested with voting rights equal to the number of
directors to be elected. The board of directors will prepare ballots with voting rights equal ta the
number of directors to be elected and distribute them to shareholders. These hallots may be
cancentrated on one candidate or spread across multiple candidates.

Independent directors shall be elected during the same voting session as non-independent directors,
and have positions allocated separately

Article 5 Candidates who receive the highest number of votes are assigned the role of director, until the
number of director seats mentioned in the Articles of Incorporation are fully filled.

If two or more candidates receive the same number of votes,

they shall draw for the remaining seats available. The chairperson will draw on behalf of those who are
ahsent during the meeting,

Article & When preparing ballots, the board of directors shall number each ballot according to conference
pass |0, and specify the number of voting rights.

Article 7 Befare the election begins, the chairpersan shall appoint ballot examiners and ballat counters ta
perform various duties relating to the election.

Article 8 & ballat box shall be made available by the board of directars, and shall be opened for inspection by
the ballot examiner prior to voting.

Article & If the candidate is alsa a shareholder, voters will have to specify both shareholder account name and
number in the appropriate calumn of the ballot. If the candidate is not a shareholder, the
candidate's name and ID card number will have to be specified on the ballot instead, and cast into
the ballot box. If the candidate is a povernment agency or corporate entity, voters may either specify
the name of the government agency/corporate entity, as described in Paragraph 1, Article 27 of the
Company Act, or specify the names of the government agency/corporate entity and its
representative, as described in Faragraph 2, Article 27 of The Company Act.

Article 10 Ballots are considered void in any of the fallowing circumstances:
1. Use of ballot that does nat conform with the formats specified in this Policy.
2. Casting of blank ballot into the ballat box.

3. Ballots with illegible writing or are altered.
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Article 11

Article 12

Article 13

Article 14

4. Where the candidate is a sharehalder, the written identity and shareholder account number do
nat match the sharehalder registry; or where the candidate is a non-sharehalder, the written
name and 1D card number do noet match.

The names of two ar more candidates are printed on the same ballat,

(¥

6. Ballots that contain writings other than the candidate's name and shareholder account number
{or 1D card number).

7.  The candidate's name written on the ballot caincides with another shareholder, but no
shareholder account number ar |0 card number is provided for identification.

A ballot box shall be prepared for director election, and opened by the ballot examiner after voting
is completed.

Ballots are to be counted openly immediately after voting. The chairpersan shall announce on-site
the outcome of the vote.

Any details that are not addressed in this Policy shall be governed by The Campany Act and relevant
regulations.

This Palicy shall take effect once approved during shareholder meeting; the same applies to all
subseguent revisions.

The Policy was first established an June 5, 2002,

The 1st amendment was made on June 7, 2018,
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